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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Joseph Robinson,                 PLAINTIFF,         CIV.S-04-1888 GEB DAD-PS                                                                 

                           SECOND AMENDED 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,                           COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES

PLUMAS COUNTY, 

Greg Hagwood,                               

Ira Kaufman                                                       DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

William Pangman

Garrett Olney                                                                                                                                 Jeff Cunan,                                                

Gary McGowan,              DEFENDANTS.                                                                                                                                                                                      

Plaintiff Joseph Robinson sues Defendants Hagwood, Kaufman, 

Pangman, Olney, Cunan and McGowan, in their individual and 

official capacities, the State of California and Plumas County for  

damages relating to Plumas County Case Number 00-26978, and, 

for causes of action, states the following.

JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction over this case lies with this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1331 

and 1343(a)(3).  Furthermore and moreover, this court has jurisdiction over this    

case because United States Constitutional issues are involved in this case.

VENUE

Venue for this action is proper under 28 U.S.C. Section 1391(b) and Local Rule     

3-120(b).  This action is brought for damages under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 and 

1985 for conspiracy to violate and violation under color of law of Robinson’s    

rights guaranteed by the Bill of Rights of the United States Constitution and      

under California statute to wrongfully convict and imprison Robinson.

PARTIES

A) Plaintiff Joseph Robinson resided in Plumas County, California before being  

     wrongfully convicted and imprisoned and now resides in Frederick County, 

     Maryland.

B) At all times referred to herein:

1. Defendant Hagwood was employed as a detective by Plumas County Sheriff Gardner.   

2. Defendants Kaufman, Pangman and Olney were employed as judges by the Superior Court of California for the County of Plumas.


3. Defendants Cunan and McGowan were employed as assistants to Plumas County District Attorney James Reichle.        

4. Defendant California is a state within the United States of America.
5. Defendant Plumas County is a county within the State of California.

CAUSES OF ACTION

In each of the following causes of action, Defendants Hagwood, Kaufman, Olney, Pangman, Reichle, Cunan, McGowan and Prouty acted, knowingly, willingly, and maliciously, under color of law, in bad faith, and for a purpose other than the furtherance of justice.

In each of the following causes of action, Plaintiff incorporates each and every one of the 611 allegations set forth on pages 7- 29 in the STATEMENT OF FACTS IN SUPPORT OF SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT.

COUNT ONE
CONSPIRACY TO WRONGFULLY                                                     CONVICT AND IMPRISON PLAINTIFF

Hagwood, Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan, and McGowan conspired, combined and cooperated with each other, and with Plumas County, and with California, to wrongfully convict and imprison Plaintiff in Plumas County case number 00-26978, and furthered their conspiracy through the overt acts of knowing and willing violation of California Penal Code Section 866.5 and Plaintiff’s federally protected rights to be free from unreasonable search and seizure, to reasonable bail, to the assistance of counsel, and to present a defense at trial.  

The development and collocation of the circumstances stated in facts 1-599 on  pages 7-29 prove that Hagwood, Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan and McGowan conspired to wrongfully convict and imprison Plaintiff and their particular overt acts  in furtherance of their conspiracy and that they are liable for damage to Plaintiff.

A) AGREEMENT

1. Hagwood, Kaufman, Pangman Olney, Cunan and McGowan had an agreement,  a tacit understanding, and/or a meeting of their minds to wrongfully convict and imprison Plaintiff.

2. Plumas County and California have the policy or practice of condoning   violation of the federally protected rights of felony defendants to wrongfully convict and imprison them.

B) INTENT

Hagwood, Kaufman, Pangman Olney, Cunan, and McGowan each intended to wrongfully convict and imprison Plaintiff.

B) OVERT ACTS IN FURTHERANCE OF PLUMAS COUNTY CONSPIRACY TO WRONGFULLY CONVICT PLAINTIFF

1. Hagwood, Kaufman and Cunan combined and cooperated to intentionally   violate Plaintiff’s right to be free from unreasonable search and seizure.
2. Kaufman, Olney and Cunan combined and cooperated to intentionally violate Plaintiff’s right to a reasonable bail.

3. Kaufman, Olney, Pangman, Cunan, McGowan and combined and cooperated    to intentionally violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of Counsel.

4. Olney and Cunan combined and cooperated to intentionally violate Plaintiff’s right to present a defense to the jury at trial.
5. Olney, Cunan and Pangman combined and cooperated to intentionally violate California Penal Code Section 866.5.
6. California and Plumas County know that judges and prosecutors conspire, combine and cooperate to violate the federally protected rights of felony defendants to wrongfully convict and imprison them, but do nothing to      prevent or punish this judicial and prosecutorial misconduct.
7. See facts 1-599 on pages 7-29.

COUNT TWO

WRONGFUL CONVICTION AND IMPRISONMENT
Hagwood, Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan, McGowan, Plumas County and California intentionally wrongfully convicted and imprisoned Plaintiff.

1. They charged Plaintiff with a felony in case number 00-26978.

2. Plaintiff did not plead guilty.

3. They knowingly violated Plaintiff’s federally protected due process rights and a California statute with the intent to wrongfully convicted and imprison Plaintiff.

4. They intentionally caused Plaintiff to be wrongfully imprisoned in the Plumas County Jail and California State Prison for 582 days.

5. Their conviction was reversed upon appeal.

6. They dismissed all charges against Plaintiff.

7. No further proceedings can be held against Plaintiff in this matter.

8. See facts 1-599 on pages 7-29.

COUNT THREE

CONSPIRACY TO VIOLATE PLAINTIFF’S RIGHT TO BE  FREE FROM UNREASONABLE SEARCH AND SEIZURE

Hagwood, Kaufman and Cunan conspired to violate Plaintiff’s right to be free from unreasonable search and seizure.

1. Hagwood and Kaufman had an agreement, or a tacit understanding or a meeting of the minds to violate Plaintiff’s right to be free from unreasonable search and seizure.

2. Hagwood and Kaufman intended to violate Plaintiff’s right to be free from unreasonable search and seizure.

3. Hagwood lied in his affidavit in support of his application for the search warrant.

4. Kaufman knew or should have known that Hagwood lied when Kaufman signed the search warrant.

5. Cunan knew that Hagwood lied to obtain the search warrant and knowingly used Hagwood’s unlawfully obtained evidence against Plaintiff.

6. See facts 1-39 on pages 7& 8.

COUNT FOUR

VIOLATION OF PLAINTIFF’S RIGHT TO BE SECURE AGAINST  UNREASONABLE SEARCH AND SEIZURE
Hagwood, Kaufman and Cunan intentionally violated Plaintiff’s right to be secure against unreasonable search and seizure.

1. Hagwood’s affidavit was insufficient on its face.

2. Hagwood knowingly lied in his affidavit in support of his application for the search warrant.

3. When Kaufman signed the search warrant, Kaufman knew or should have known that Hagwood’s affidavit was insufficient on its face and that Hagwood lied.

4. Cunan used Hagwood’s unlawfully obtained evidence.

5. See facts 1-39 on pages 7& 8.

COUNT FIVE

CONSPIRACY TO VIOLATE PLAINTIFF’S RIGHT                                                           TO THE ASISTANCE OF COUNSEL
Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan, McGowan and Prouty conspired to intentionally violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel.

1. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan, and McGowan had an agreement, or a tacit understanding, or a meeting of the minds to violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel.

2. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan and McGowan intended to violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel.

3. The overt acts by Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan and McGowan in furtherance of their conspiracy to violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance          of counsel are stated in numbers 

4. See facts 45-599 on pages 9-29.

COUNT SIX

VIOLATION OF PLAINTIFF’S RIGHT                                           TO THE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan and McGowan combined and cooperated to intentionally violate Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel.

1. Plaintiff was a felony defendant.

2. Plaintiff qualified for appointed counsel.

3. Plaintiff requested appointed counsel.

4. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Cunan, and McGowan intentionally combined and cooperated to unlawfully fail and refuse to provide effective counsel for Plaintiff.

5. The California Third District Court of Appeal ruled that the Plumas County Court officers violated Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel.

6. The facts related to the violation of Plaintiff’s right to the assistance of counsel by Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan and McGowan are stated in numbers 45-599 on pages 9-29.
STATEMENT OF FACTS IN SUPPORT OF             SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT 

1. In September, 2000, a confidential informant informed Plumas County Sheriff Officer Rod DeCrona that the informant had discovered a marijuana garden in a remote area below the Beardsley Grade and that the informant had seen Robinson driving on the Beardsley Grade several times that summer.

2. Decrona spoke with Hagwood.

3. Hagwood set up surveillance of the marijuana garden below the Beardsley Grade.

4. The purpose of the surveillance was to connect Robinson to the marijuana garden below the Beardlsley Grade.

5. The surveillance failed to connect Robinson to the marijuana garden below the Beardsley Grade.

6. Hagwood flew over Robinson’s home and property.

7. The purpose of Hagwood’s flight over Robinson’s home and property was to search for unlawful activity at Robinson’s home and property.

8. When Hagwood flew over Robinson’s home and property, Hagwood did not observe any unlawful activity at Robinson.s home or property.

9. Hagwood saw no marijuana at Robinson’s home or property.

10. No body informed Hagwood that there was marijuana at Robinson’s home or property.

11. On September 26, 2000, at about 8:30 P.M., Plumas County Sheriff Detective Hagwood applied to Plumas County Judge Ira Kaufman for a warrant to search Joseph Robinson’s home.

12. Hagwood supported his application for a warrant to search Robinson’s home with an affidavit.

13. Hagwood did not have personal knowledge of any crime by Robinson.

14. Hagwood did not have any witness with personal knowledge of any crime by Robinson.

15. Hagwood recklessly disregarded the truth by including the 1998 Kearns allegations in his affidavit, which Hagwood knew, or should have known, were false.

16. The allegations attributed to Kearns by Hagwood are incredible, or, at least, highly questionable, on their face.

17. Hagwood knowingly misrepresented the statements of Carol Kingdon by fabricating and attributing damaging statements to Kingdon that Kingdon did not say and omitting Kingdon’s exculpatory information relating to Robinson’s medical use of marijuana. 

18. Hagwood knowingly misrepresented the statements of DeCrona’s informant by claiming     that DeCrona said that this informant claimed to have personal knowledge that the marijuana garden below the Beardsley Grade was authored by Robinson, when it was clear and obvious that DeCrona’s informant was never in a position to have such personal knowledge of the identity of the author of the marijuana garden below the Beardsley Grade.

19. Hagwood knowingly misrepresented the statements of DeCrona’s informant by omitting the critical fact that Robinson had been driving Robinson’s vehicle on the Beardsley Grade when seen by DeCrona’s informant. 

20. Hagwood attempted to make it falsely appear that the informant had seen Robinson several times in the forest within an eighth of a mile of a marijuana garden.

21. Hagwood stated that he had found the marijuana garden in the location below the Beardsley Grade described by Decrona’s informant.

22. Hagwood stated that he had seen Robinson with Robinson’s dogs ½ mile from the garden, knowing that the sighting was actually a mile away from the garden.

23. Hagwood lied and recklessly disregarded the truth in a futile attempt to show that Robinson was the author of the marijuana garden below the Beardsley Grade.

24. Hagwood’s affidavit failed to state that Hagwood had personal knowledge of the reliability,  (or even the identity), of DeCrona’s “confidential reliable informant”. (CRI)

25. Hagwood’s affidavit clearly stated that DeCrona’s informant (CRI) was not in a position to have personal knowledge of marijuana production or sales by Robinson.

26. Hagwood’s affidavit clearly states that no body named in the warrant including Hagwood, DeCrona, CRI, CI(Kearns), CI(Kingdon), or any other body, was ever in a position to have personal knowledge of marijuana production or sales by Robinson or at Robinson’s home.

27. Hagwood’s affidavit in support of his application to search Robinson’s home was clearly      and obviously questionable and insufficient on its face.

28. Hagwood’s affidavit in support of his application to search Robinson’s home contained deliberate falsehoods and reckless disregard for the truth.

29. On Tuesday, September 26, 2000, at 8:34 P.M., Plumas County Judge Ira Kaufman, in conspiracy with Hagwood to violate Robinson’s home without probable cause, or, in the alternative, without sufficient reading, understanding and/or consideration of Hagwood’s affidavit, authorized Hagwood to search Robinson’s home.

30. On Wednesday, September 27, 2000, Plumas County Sheriff Gardner, Hagwood and about twenty other armed and dangerous persons raided Robinson’s home.

31. Gardner and Hagwood discovered Joseph Robinson, Joshua Hinds, Jonathan Rickert and Brenda Vettel processing marijuana and Zeke Layman visiting.

32. Gardner and Hagwood discovered documentation that Robinson, Hinds, Rickert and Vettel had the lawful right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose.

33. Gardner and Hagwood discovered documentation that Robinson had offered to distribute Robinson’s excess marijuana to patients of the California Medical Research Center.

34. Gardner and Hagwood disregarded California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5.

35. Gardner and Hagwood seized and ignored Robinson’s medical certificate and the medical certificates of Hinds, Rickert and Vettel, and Robinson’s letter to CMRC.

36. Gardner and Hagwood seized and destroyed all of the marijuana in from Robinson’s home.

37. Gardner and Hagwood seized Robinson’s two vehicles, Toyota and Chevy pickups.

38. Gardner and Hagwood arrested Robinson, Hinds, Rickert, Vettel and Layman.

39. Gardner and Hagwood found no evidence that Layman was involved with the marijuana        in any way.

40. Plumas County District Attorney James Reichle and Prosecutor Jeff Cunan charged Robinson, Hinds, Rickert, Vettel and Layman with cultivation, transportation, offer-for-sale and possession-for-sale of marijuana.

41. Reichle and Cunan had no evidence that Layman was involved with the marijuana in any way.

42. Plumas County Court Officers Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan, McGowan and Prouty conspired to pervert and obstruct the due administration of California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5.

43. Plumas County Court Officers Kaufman, Pankman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan, McGowan and Prouty conspired to violate Robinsons’s federally protected rights.

44. Plumas County Court Officers Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan, McGowan and Prouty conspired to wrongfully convict and imprison Robinson.

45. On Friday, September 29, 2000, Robinson appeared in court.

46. Theiler was the judge.

47. Robinson requested a bond hearing.

48. Theiler refused to provide Robinson with an opportunity to be heard.

49. Theiler said Robinson could have a bond hearing on Monday, October 2, 2000 at 3 P.M.

50. Robinson disqualified Theiler pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 170.6.

51. Over the weekend, Robinson arranged for three prominent local citizens to appear and testify for Robinson at the bond hearing on Monday, October 2, 2000.

52. On Monday, October, 2, 2000, Robinson’s three witnesses made the 45 minute trip from      the Indian Valley to Quincy and arrived in court on time, ready, willing and able to testify    for Robinson in the scheduled 3: P.M. bond hearing.

53. Kaufman was the judge.

54. Cunan was the prosecutor.

55. Kaufman knew that Robinson was present in court for a 3 P.M. bond hearing.

56. Cunan knew that Robinson was present in court for a 3 P.M. bond hearing.

57. Kaufman knew that Robinson’s three witnesses were present and ready to testify at  Robinson’s scheduled 3 P.M. bond hearing.

58. Cunan knew that Robinson’s three witnesses were present and ready to testify at      Robinson’s scheduled 3 P.M. bond hearing.

59. Kaufman and Cunan delayed Robinson’s case until the end of the day.

60. When Kaufman and Cunan finally called Robinson’s case, Robinson informed Kaufman     that Robinson was ready to proceed with the scheduled bond hearing.

61. Kaufman informed Robinson that Kaufman had the duty to assure that Robinson obtained     all of Robinson’s rights and that Robinson got a fair trial.

62. Kaufman said he would appoint an attorney for Robinson if Robinson desired counsel.

63. Kaufman opined that it was advantageous for a criminal defendant to have counsel sooner rather than later.

64. Kaufman informed Robinson that Kaufman had practiced as a criminal defense lawyer for over twenty-five years in Los Angeles, Plumas County and all over California and that Kaufman had never seen any body represent themselves as well as an attorney.

65. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had the right to be represented by an attorney      at all stages of the proceedings.

66. Kaufman informed Robinson that if Robinson could not afford an attorney, Kaufman       would appoint an attorney for Robinson at no cost.

67. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had the right to subpoena witnesses.

68. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had the right to present evidence in court in defense of the charges.

69. Kaufman recommended that Robinson have an attorney.

70. Kaufman advised that Robinson have an attorney.

71. Cunan did not object to the foregoing opinion, information, recommendation and advice.

72. Robinson informed Kaufman that Robinson wished the assistance of counsel so that   Robinson could retain control over the policy decisions of the case.

73. Kaufman offered to appoint Attorney Dale Wood to represent Robinson and make all of       the policy decisions for Robinson.

74. Robinson requested an immediate OR hearing.

75. Kaufman informed Robinson that appointing counsel for Robinson was Kaufman’s first priority.

76. Robinson agreed to accept counsel if Robinson could proceed with the OR hearing immediately.

77. Kaufman informed Robinson that Kaufman was not inclined to release Robinson on OR.

78. Robinson repeated Robinson’s request for an OR hearing.

79. Kaufman provided Robinson with a copy of Robinson’s                                                                      OR/BAIL RECOMMENDATION REPORT.

80. Kaufman recessed Robinson’s case.

81. When Kaufman resumed Robinson’s case, Kaufman inquired what Robinson wanted.

82. Robinson informed Kaufman that Robinson wished to proceed with his OR hearing.

83. Kaufman inquired whether Robinson wished to proceed with the OR hearing.

84. Robinson said, “Yes”.

85. Kaufman again offered to appoint an attorney to represent Robinson.

86. Robinson again requested the assistance of counsel.

87. Kaufman refused to appoint an attorney to assist Robinson.

88. Kaufman offered to appoint an attorney to represent Robinson.

89. Kaufman informed Robinson that Kaufman wanted to delay Robinson’s OR hearing until Friday, October 6, 2004 so that Wood could be present and so that Wood could decide  whether to proceed with a bail hearing.

90. Robinson informed Kaufman that Robinson wished to proceed with an OR hearing.

91. Kaufman inquired whether Robinson wished Kaufman to appoint counsel for Robinson.

92. Kaufman stated again that Wood would be in court on Friday.

93. Kaufman opined that Wood is an excellent attorney.

94. Robinson agreed to accept Wood as the attorney of record if Robinson could have an immediate OR hearing without Wood.

95. Kaufman appointed Wood to be the attorney of record in Robinson’s case and agreed that Robinson could proceed with the scheduled OR hearing without Wood.

96. Cunan did not object.

97. Kaufman appointed Wood for Robinson without any consideration of finances.

98. Cunan did not object.

99. Kaufman failed to provide Robinson with a phone number to contact Wood.

100. Kaufman again informed Robinson that Kaufman was inclined to keep Robinson in jail and not release Robinson on OR.

101. Kaufman informed Robinson that Kaufman  “….would be more inclined to listen to whether or not $500,000 is an appropriate bail.

102. Robinson requested that Kaufman provide for Robinson the information upon which Kaufman would base his decision.

103. Kaufman stated that Hagwood requested that Kaufman sign a search warrant for Robinson’s home.

104. Kaufman stated that Hagwood provided “information”.

105. Kaufman stated that he signed the search warrant for Robinson’s home.

106. Kaufman stated that he possessed a copy of the affidavit in support of that warrant.

107. Kaufman stated that Hagwood requested that Kaufman deviate from the bail schedule    and set Robinson’s bail at $500,000 instead of the $50,000 for a defendant who does not    meet the OR requirements.

108. Kaufman stated that he deviated from the bail schedule and set Robinson’s bail at $500,000 instead of the $50,000 for a defendant who does not qualify for an OR release.

109. Kaufman stated that Hagwood again provided “information”.

110. Robinson requested that Kaufman provide Hagwood’s “information” for Robinson.

111. Kaufman stated that he did not have Hagwood’s “information” with him.

112. Kaufman stated that Kaufman could not remember Hagwood’s “information”.

113. Kaufman stated that Kaufman wanted to deal with the facts.

114. Robinson stated that Robinson knew of no fact that would preclude his OR.

115. Kaufman said “Okay”.

116. Cunan said nothing.

117. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan of the three criteria California Penal Code  Section 1275 states as relevant to the amount of bail.

118. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that, in the setting of bail, there should be no suggestion of revenue for the government or punishment to the defendant..

119. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that the primary purpose of bail is to ensure      the defendant will attend court when his presence is required.

120. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that the bail shall not be unreasonable.

121. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that Robinson had a declaration that addressed the issues related to the setting of bail.

122. Kaufman interrupted Robinson by requesting input from Cunan.

123. Cunan stated that the $500,000 bail was “unreasonable”.

124. Cunan requested a $50,000 bail for Robinson.

125. Kaufman requested input from Robinson.

126. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that any bail above zero is unreasonable in Robinson’s case.

127. Kaufman disagreed with Robinson.

128. Kaufman did not state any fact or present any evidence to show that any bail was required to secure Robinson’s presence in court.

129. Cunan did not state any fact or present any evidence to show that any bail was required to secure Robinson’s presence in court.

130. Robinson requested that Kaufman withhold Kaufman’s judgment until after Robinson’s bail hearing.

131. Kaufman stated:  “We’re not going to hold a bail hearing today.”

132. Robinson objected on the ground that Robinson’s three witnesses had traveled from the Indian Valley (90 minute round trip) and waited since about 2:30 PM to testify for Robinson.

133. Kaufman refused to allow Robinson to have a bond hearing.

134. Robinson objected on the grounds that Robinson was entitled to a bond hearing within  five days of arrest. (This was the end of the fifth day.)

135. Kaufman requested that Cunan respond.

136. Cunan stated:  “We’re having the hearing today.”

137. Robinson said:  “Thank you.”

138. Kaufman said:  “We’re not going through the whole hearing today.”

139. Cunan said:  “The hearing has begun.”

140. Kaufman said:  “The hearing has begun.”

141. Kaufman immediately ended the hearing by deciding to set bail at $50,000 and setting Robinson’s case off until Friday, October 6, 2000, at 1000 hours.

142. Robinson requested an opportunity to be heard.

143. Kaufman refused to allow Robinson to have an opportunity to be heard.

144. Robinson requested the opportunity to make an objection on the record.

145. Kaufman allowed Robinson to state an objection for the record.

146. Robinson objected to Kaufman and Cunan that Robinson has not had an OR/bond hearing. 

147. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that, at Robinson’s previous court appearance, when Robinson requested a bond hearing, Judge Theiler had scheduled Robinson’s bond hearing for today.

148. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that Robinson was prepared to proceed with Robinson’s bond hearing.

149. Kaufman again refused to allow Robinson to have a bond hearing.

150. Robinson accused Kaufman and Cunan of being punitive.

151. Kaufman said:  “It’s not punitive”.

152. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that it (remaining in jail without a bond hearing) was hard on Robinson and that there was no reason for it.

153. Kaufman dropped Robinson’s case and called another matter.

154. When Kaufman resumed Robinson’s case, Kaufman stated that Kaufman knew  Robinson’s witnesses.

155. Kaufman requested that Robinson’s three witnesses agree to return and continued Robinson’s bond hearing until 11 A.M. the next day.

156. Kearns and Tucker agreed to return.

157. Kaufman and Cunan stipulated that Hamblin could appear by letter.

158. Robinson requested that Kaufman produce Robinson’s accuser to testify for Robinson.

159. Kaufman refused to produce Robinson’s accuser.

160. Wood refused the appointment.

161. Wood failed to visit Robinson in jail.

162. Wood failed to contact Robinson.

163. The next morning, October 3, 2000, Robinson appeared in court for his bond hearing.

164. Kaufman was the judge.

165. Cunan was the prosecutor.

166. Two of Robinson’s witnesses (Kearns, Tucker) were present.

167. Robinson’s third witness (Hamblin) was accounted for by stipulation through letter.

168. Wood was neither present nor accounted for.

169. Cunan failed to inform Robinson that Wood had refused the appointment.

170. Kaufman failed to inform Robinson that Wood had refused the appointment.

171. Wood failed to inform Robinson that Wood had refused the appointment.

172. No body in Plumas County ever informed Robinson that Wood had refused the appointment. 

173. Robinson discovered that Wood refused the appointment in a 2004 telephone conversation with a person who answered Wood’s business phone:  (530) 587-3450.

174. Cunan objected to proceeding with Robinson’s bond hearing without Attorney of Record Wood.

175. Kaufman agreed with Cunan that Robinson could not have a bond hearing without Wood.

176. The true purpose of Kaufman and Cunan for appointing Wood to represent Robinson as the attorney of record was to prevent Robinson from having a bond hearing. 

177. Robinson qualified for an own recognizance release

178. Robinson required a fair and immediate bond hearing to obtain a release on his own recognizance.

179. Robinson dismissed Wood so that Robinson could have a bond hearing immediately.

180. Kaufman advised Robinson to have the assistance of counsel in this type of case.

181. Kaufman said that it is a very serious and complex case.

182. Kaufman said that it might be a “case of first impression in the state of California”.

183. Kaufman said there might be some “interesting and articulate and intricate legal issues.”

184. Kaufman said that Robinson would benefit from the assistance of counsel.

185. Robinson informed Kaufman and Cunan that Robinson would like to have the “assistance of counsel”.

186. Robinson said that Robinson did not want an attorney to be appointed as the “attorney of record”.

187. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had to “meet certain financial requirements”  to qualify for appointed counsel.

188. Kaufman stated that Robinson had not filled out a financial declaration.

189. Kaufman stated that, because Robinson was in custody, Kaufman assumed Robinson  could not afford to pay for counsel.

190. Kaufman inquired whether Robinson wanted counsel or wanted to represent himself.

191. Robinson responded:  “I always told you I wanted to represent my self.”

192. Kaufman said:  “I know.”

193. Kaufman admitted that he knew that Robinson was really interested in an OR hearing.

194. Kaufman admitted that he had talked Robinson into an attorney the day before.

195. Kaufman said:  “Let’s proceed.”

196. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had “certain Constitutional rights”.

197. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had the right to be represented by an attorney at all the stages of the proceedings.

198. Kaufman informed Robinson that, if Robinson could no afford to hire an attorney, the court would appoint an attorney for Robinson at no cost.

199. Kaufman informed Robinson that Robinson had the right to present evidence in court in defense of the charges.

200. Kaufman warned Robinson of the dangers of proceeding with out an attorney.

201. Kaufman inquired:  “So, you want to represent yourself, Mr. Robinson?”

202. Though Robinson had already informed Kaufman more than once that Robinson would like to retain control over the case and have the assistance of counsel, Robinson wished an immediate bond hearing, so Robinson responded:  “Yes”.

203. Kaufman and Cunan finally allowed Robinson to proceed with Robinson’s bond hearing.

204. Jim Hamblin’s letter was entered into evidence.

205. Hamlin is Chief of the Indian Valley Fire and Rescue.

206. Robinson was a member of the volunteer fire department.

207. Hamblin’s letter was very favorable to Robinson’s reliability and character.

208. Delma Kearns was Robinson’s real estate agent.

209. Delma Kearns testified that she has personal knowledge that Robinson is reliable and that Robinson has a reputation for reliability, honesty and integrity.

210. Ken Tucker owns and manages the grocery store in Greenville, California.

211. Ken Tucker testified that Robinson has a reputation for honesty, integrity, dependability and reliability.

212. Kaufman stated that:  “The reason for the point count system is to try to bring more consistency into the system so that someone who faces the same type of charge with the same type of record gets the same bail/OR.”

213. Robinson testified to facts that showed that Robinson’s marijuana was for a lawful medical purpose.

214. Robinson testified to facts that showed that Robinson is not a flight risk.

215. Robinson testified to facts that showed that Robinson had no significant criminal history.

216. Robinson testified to facts that showed that Robinson has a history of numerous timely California court appearances without failure to appear.

217. Kaufman and Cunan knew that, according to the guidelines used by Plumas County, Robinson qualified for an unconditional release on Robinson’s own recognizance.

218. Cunan presented no evidence that Robinson was a flight risk.

219. Cunan presented no evidence that Robinson was a danger to the community.

220. Cunan presented no evidence that justified any bond.

221. Cunan presented no evidence.

222. Cunan requested that Kaufman charge Robinson a bail to get out of jail.

223. Cunan did not state any lawful reason for the bail.

224. Kaufman and Cunan agreed to charge Robinson with a $50,000 bail to get out of jail.

225. Kaufman failed to state the facts upon which Kaufman relied to make the determination that Robinson did not qualify for an OR release.

226. Kaufman failed to state the facts upon which Kaufman relied to make the determination that $50,000 was a reasonable bail.

227. Kaufman failed to state any lawful reason for his refusal to release Robinson on OR.

228. Robinson’s family loaned Robinson $50,000 for the unreasonable bond.

229. Kaufman knew that Robinson’s family was the source of Robinson’s bond.

230. Cunan knew that Robinson’s family was the source of Robinson’s bond.

231. On October 12, 2000, the Plumas County Sheriff released Robinson from jail on a $50,000 bond.

232. After release from jail, when Robinson converted one of his three properties at a loss, after paying debts related to the other two properties, paying debts caused by the recent raid of Robinson’s home, purchasing a vehicle necessary for Robinson to appear in court and paying miscellaneous other personal debts and obligations, Robinson had only enough money left for the bare necessities of life.

233. All of the attorneys with whom Robinson spoke demanded tens of thousands of dollars in advance to take Robinson’s case.                                                                                              

234. Some estimates ran over $100,000 through trial.

235. Robinson could not afford to pay for the assistance of counsel.

236. With $50,000 of family money tied up in the unreasonable bond, Robinson’s family was unwilling to loan Robinson more money for an attorney.

237. Robinson placed his other two properties on the market to pay for an attorney.

238. On October 18, 2000, Robinson met with District Attorney Reichle and Prosecutor Cunan in the office of the district attorney.

239. Robinson complained to Reichle and Cunan that Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

240. Cunan said that he did not care whether Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

241. Robinson informed Reichle and Cunan that their inequity would cause a lawsuit.

242. Reichle and Cunan laughed and said that they could do whatever they want because they were immune from civil suit.

243. That same day, Robinson memorialized the meeting in a letter to Reichle.

244. In that letter Robinson stated that Reichle and Cunan had stipulated to the following:

a) Californians have the right to obtain and use marijuana for medical purposes.

b) Most Californians that have the right to obtain and use marijuana for medical purposes are not able to produce marijuana and do not have a caretaker that is able to produce marijuana.

c) Most Californians that have the right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose must purchase marijuana to obtain marijuana.

245. In that letter Robinson stated that Reichle and Cunan took the position that it was lawful for Californians with physician recommendation to purchase marijuana for medical purposes, but it is a felony for any body to provide medical marijuana for people who have the lawful right to obtain and use marijuana for medical purposes pursuant to California statute and physician recommendation.

246. In that letter Robinson stated that, when Robinson informed Reichle and Cunan that their inequity would cause a lawsuit, Reichle and Cunan laughed, and Cunan said that he and Reichle were immune from judgment.

247. In Cunan’s October 24, 2000 response, Cunan denies any stipulation but admits that he  did laugh.

248. On October 26, 2000, Robinson filed a written motion for the appointment of counsel.

249. In this motion, Robinson asserted that he could not afford an attorney.

250. On November 22, 2000 Robinson appeared in court to move the court to appoint counsel for Robinson.

251. Garrett Olney was the judge.

252. Gary McGowan was the prosecutor.

253. Olney knew that a defendant in a criminal case had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

254. Olney knew that Robinson was a defendant in a criminal case.

255. McGowan knew that a defendant in a criminal case had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

256. McGowan knew that Robinson was a defendant in a criminal case.

257. Before Robinson had an opportunity to speak, McGowan requested that Olney refuse to appoint counsel to assist Robinson.

258. McGowan said that he did not believe that Robinson would financially qualify for a court appointed attorney.

259. A defendant’s financial declaration is confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

260. A defendant’s hearing to determine financial eligibility for appointed counsel is confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

261. Olney knew that Robinson’s financial declaration and hearing were confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

262. McGowan knew that Robinson’s financial declaration and hearing were confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

263. Olney knew that Robinson had a right to a private hearing without McGowan.

264. McGowan knew that Robinson had a right to a private hearing without McGowan.

265. Olney allowed McGowan to remain in the courtroom during the hearing upon the issue of Robinson’s financial eligibility for appointed counsel.

266. McGowan chose to remain in the courtroom during the hearing upon the issue of Robinson’s financial eligibility for appointed counsel.

267. McGowan remained in the courtroom to conspire with Olney to violate Robinson’s right  to counsel.

268. McGowan was not in his prosecutorial capacity when he remained in the courtroom.

269. McGowan was in his individual capacity when he took part against Robinson in the hearing on Robinson’s financial eligibility for appointed counsel.

270. Olney and McGowan agreed to violate Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

271. Olney asked McGowan for input.

272. McGowan participated in the hearing on Robinson’s financial eligibility for appointed counsel.

273. McGowan argued that Robinson did not financially qualify for appointed counsel.

274. McGowan did not present any evidence.

275. Olney required Robinson to complete the confidential financial declaration in front of McGowan.

276. Olney interrogated Robinson upon financial matters in front of McGowan.

277. Robinson informed Olney and McGowan that Robinson could not afford an attorney.

278. Robinson presented plausible explanation and argument relating to private counsel’s lack of interest in the case.

279. According to California law, the test of indigence is whether a private attorney would be interested in representing a defendant considering the defendant’s present economic circumstances.

280. Olney knew the foregoing test of indigence.

281. McGowan knew the foregoing test of indigence.

282. The evidence before Olney and McGowan clearly showed that Robinson met the  foregoing test of indigence.

283. No evidence was presented that showed Robinson did not meet the foregoing test of indigence.

284. Olney knew that Robinson met the foregoing test of indigence.

285. McGowan knew that Robinson met the foregoing test of indigence.

286. The lawful test for indigence is not whether a defendant is a pauper or on public assistance.

287. Olney knew that the lawful test of indigence was not whether a defendant is a pauper or on public assistance.

288. McGowan knew that the lawful test of indigence was not whether a defendant is a pauper or on public assistance.

289. Olney decided that Robinson had to be at the level of welfare to qualify for appointed counsel.

290. McGowan agreed with Olney that Robinson had to be at the level of welfare to qualify for appointed counsel.

291. The ruling agreed upon by Olney and McGowan, that Robinson had to be at the level of welfare to qualify for appointed counsel, is without support in California law.

292. The law provides for proceedings to recoup the cost of counsel if a defendant does have  the ability to pay for part or all of the costs of counsel.

293. Olney knew that the law provides for proceedings to recoup the cost of counsel if a defendant does have the ability to pay part or all of the costs of counsel.

294. McGowan knew that the law provides for proceedings to recoup the cost of counsel if a defendant does have the ability to pay part or all of the costs of counsel.

295. Olney knew that, since Gideon v Wainright in 1963, a defendant in a felony criminal case in state court had the absolute right to the assistance of counsel.

296. McGowan knew that, since Gideon v Wainright in 1963, a defendant in a felony criminal case in state court had the absolute right to the assistance of counsel.

297. Olney and McGowan agreed not to appoint counsel for Robinson.

298. Olney knew that deprivation of the assistance of counsel would be bad for Robinson.

299. McGowan knew that deprivation of the assistance of counsel would be bad for Robinson.

300. On November 30, 2000, Robinson again filed a written motion requesting the assistance  of counsel.

301. In this motion, Robinson objected to Olney’s refusal to appoint counsel to assist Robinson.

302. In this motion, Robinson stated that he had no money to pay an attorney.

303. Robinson also filed a motion to suppress the evidence obtained through the warrant.

304. Robinson lawfully served and filed several subpoenas related to said motion to suppress, including upon Hagwood and DeCrona and Kingdon and Kearns and CRI through Hagwood.

305. On December 7, 2000, Robinson appeared for the preliminary hearing.

306. William Pangman was the magistrate.

307. Cunan was the prosecutor.

308. Pangman informed Robinson that Robinson had the Constitutional right to an attorney,  and that, if Robinson could not afford an attorney, an attorney would be appointed for Robinson, and that, if it were ultimately determined that Robinson could afford some or all    of the costs of legal counsel, then Robinson would have to reimburse the County of Plumas.

309. Cunan heard Pangman inform Robinson of Robinson’s Constitutional right to an attorney.

310. Robinson informed Pangman and Cunan that Robinson could not afford an attorney.

311. Robinson requested that Pangman appoint an attorney for Robinson.

312. Pangman knew that Robinson had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

313. Cunan knew that Robinson had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

314. Pangman required that Robinson complete a financial statement to qualify for appointed counsel.

315. Pangman knew that Robinson’s financial declaration was confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

316. Cunan knew that Robinson’s financial declaration was confidential, not open to the prosecutor.

317. Pangman allowed Cunan to remain in the courtroom when Pangman required Robinson    to complete the financial declaration to qualify for the appointment of counsel.

318. Cunan chose to remain in the courtroom when Pangman required Robinson to complete     a financial declaration to qualify for the appointment of counsel.

319. Cunan remained in the courtroom to conspire with Pangman to violate Robinson’s right   to the assistance of counsel.

320. Cunan was not in his prosecutorial capacity when he remained in the courtroom.

321. Cunan was acting in his individual capacity when he took part against Robinson in the hearing to determine Robinson’s financial eligibility for appointed counsel.

322. Pangman asked Cunan for input.

323. Cunan argued against the appointment of counsel for Robinson.

324. With Cunan present, Robinson wrote N/A throughout the financial statement.

325. Robinson reiterated that he had no cash.

326. Robinson informed Pangman and Cunan that all the trial attorneys Robinson contacted wanted money in advance to take the case.

327. Robinson informed Pangman that no attorney was willing to take a lien against his property.

328. Cunan presented no evidence to show that Robinson could afford an attorney.

329. Pangman and Cunan agreed not to appoint an attorney for Robinson.

330. Robinson requested an opportunity to be heard on the warrant.

331. Robinson requested that Pangman and Cunan enforce Robinson’s subpoenas related to the warrant.

332. Pangman and Cunan agreed not to enforce Robinson’s subpoenas.

333. Pangman and Cunan agreed to violate Robinson’s due process right to an opportunity to   be heard on the warrant.

334. After the preliminary hearing began, Robinson continued to request a court appointed attorney.

335. Pangman and Cunan continued to fail and refuse to provide legal counsel for Robinson.

336. California Penal Code Section 866.5 states that the defendant in a criminal case may not  be examined at the preliminary hearing unless the defendant is represented by counsel or has waived his right to counsel.

337. Pangman knew that California Penal Code Section 866.5 states that the defendant in a criminal case may not be examined at the preliminary hearing unless the defendant is represented by counsel or has waived his right to counsel.

338. Cunan knew that California Penal Code Section 866.5 states that the defendant in a criminal case may not be examined at the preliminary hearing unless the defendant is represented by counsel or has waived his right to counsel.

339. Pangman knew that Robinson did not have an attorney.

340. Cunan knew that Robinson did not have an attorney.

341. Pangman knew that Robinson had requested appointment of an attorney

342. Cunan knew that Robinson had requested appointment of an attorney.

343. Pangman knew that Robinson had not waived his right to the assistance of counsel.

344. Cunan knew that Robison had not waived his right to the assistance of counsel.

345. Pangman and Cunan agreed to examine Robinson at the preliminary hearing without counsel or a waiver of counsel, in direct, knowing, willing, and malicious violation of California Penal Code Section 866.5.

346. Robinson testified that he began growing marijuana for his personal use after the passage         of the Compassionate Use Act in 1996, that, in 2000, he obtained written approval from a physician to use marijuana, that he was growing more marijuana than he and his coworkers could use, and that he planned to sell the excess marijuana through the California Medical Research Center to provide marijuana for patients who could not grow it themselves.

347. The Plumas County Court lost jurisdiction over the person of Robinson when Cunan      and Pangman failed and refused to complete the court for the preliminary hearing.

348. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan and Prouty knew that Cunan and Pangman failed to complete the court for the preliminary hearing.

349. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan and Prouty knew that failing to complete     the court for the preliminary hearing deprived the court of jurisdiction over the person of Robinson.

350. Kaufman, Pangman, Olney, Reichle, Cunan and Prouty knowingly, willingly and maliciously proceeded against Robinson without jurisdiction over the person of Robinson.

351. On December 20, 2000, Robinson appeared in court.

352. Kaufman was the judge.

353. Cunan was the prosecutor.

354. Robinson again moved the court to appoint counsel for Robinson.

355. Kaufman knew that Robinson had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

356. Cunan knew that Robinson had the Constitutional right to the assistance of counsel.

357. Kaufman knew that violation of Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel would         be bad for Robinson.

358. Cunan knew that violation of Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel would be      bad for Robinson.

359. Kaufman knew that Robinson had the right to make a confidential financial declaration  not open to the prosecutor.

360. Cunan knew that Robinson had the right to make a confidential financial declaration not open to the prosecutor.

361. Kaufman allowed Cunan to remain in the courtroom.

362. Cunan chose to remain in the courtroom.

363. Cunan remained in the courtroom to conspire with Kaufman to violate Robinson’s right   to the assistance of counsel.

364. Cunan was not in his prosecutorial capacity when he remained in the courtroom.

365. Cunan was in his individual capacity when he remained in the courtroom.

366. Kaufman prejudicially indicated that he would refuse to appoint counsel for Robinson.

367. Kaufman stated two reasons for his prejudicial refusal to appoint counsel for Robinson.

368. Kaufman stated that he intended to refuse to appoint counsel for Robinson because Kaufman was not sure whether Robinson was truly indigent.

369. Kaufman said that the more important reason for his refusal to appoint counsel for Robinson was that Robinson was running a competent case, and Robinson was competent to continue, and Kaufman did not think an attorney would add anything, and would, in fact, be    a detriment to Robinson.

370. There is no support in California law for Kaufman’s refusal to appoint counsel because Robinson was competent to continue and Kaufman did not think an attorney would add anything, and would, in fact, be a detriment.

371. Kaufman offered Robinson an opportunity to be heard.

372. Robinson reiterated his request for the appointment of counsel.

373. Robinson began to state his reasons for that request.

374. Cunan interrupted Robinson.

375. Kaufman allowed Cunan to interrupt Robinson.

376. Cunan conspired with Kaufman to violate Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

377. Cunan argued against the appointment of counsel for Robinson for financial reasons.

378. Kaufman and Cunan agreed that Robinson could have as many attorneys as Robinson wanted in whatever capacity Robinson wanted, but that Robinson would have to pay for the assistance of counsel.

379. Kaufman and Cunan knew that Robinson could not afford to pay for an attorney.

380. Kaufman and Cunan agreed to violate Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

381. Robinson again moved for a release upon Robinson’s own recognizance.

382. Plumas County, California uses an O.R./BAIL REDUCTION REPORT to determine whether a defendant qualifies for a release on his own recognizance.

383. The recommendation guidelines state that, to qualify for a regular own recognizance release, a defendant must:

            a. be booked on a single criminal case and have no pending criminal cases;

            b. score at least 7 points on the point scale;

            c. have a verified local address;

            d. not be booked  on a Failure to appear or have failed to appear within the last year;

            e. receive a positive recommendation from at least one reference and must have no 

                negative comments regarding reliability from either a reference or a probation officer.

384. Kaufman knew that Plumas County uses the OR/BAIL REDUCTION REPORT to determine whether a defendant qualifies for release on his own recognizance.

385. Cunan knew that Plumas County uses the OR/BAIL REDUCTION REPORT to determine whether a defendant qualifies for release on his own recognizance.

386. Kaufman knew the aforementioned recommendation guidelines for a defendant to qualify for an OR release.

387. Cunan knew the aforementioned recommendation guidelines for a defendant to qualify   for an OR release.

388. Cunan and Kaufman stipulated that Robinson scored 15 on the point scale of the OR/BAILREDUCTION REPORT.

389. Cunan and Kaufman knew that Robinson:

            a)  was booked on a single criminal case and had no pending criminal cases;

            b). scored 15 points on the point scale;

            c). had a verified local address;

            d)  was not booked on a failure to appear and had never failed to appear;

e) received a positive reference related to reliability from three prominent members of 

the community in which Robinson resided and had received no negative references.

390. Cunan and Kaufman stipulated that Robinson was not a flight risk and was not a danger   to the community.

391. Kaufman knew that Robinson qualified for an own recognizance release.

392. Cunan knew that Robinson qualified for an own recognizance release.

393. Cunan and Kaufman agreed to refuse to release Robinson on Robinson’s own recognizance.

394. Cuanan and Kaufman did not state any reason for their agreement to continue to        charge Robinson with a financial bond.

395. Kaufman and Cunan charged Robinson a bond of $15,000.   

396. $35,000 was returned to Robinson’s family.

397. In early 2001, Robinson’s family retained Sacramento Attorney, John Duree with a payment of about $12,000.

398. Cunan, Kaufman and Olney knew that Duree traveled to Quincy from Sacramento.

399. Cunan, Kaufman and Olney knowingly, willingly and maliciously required Duree to   make several unnecessary trips to Quincy.

400. Duree recommended that Robinson use a justification defense for the act of distribution   of marijuana for a medical purpose.

401. Cunan moved the court to exclude a necessity defense and a Proposition 215 defense.

402. Duree filed a motion in limine to present evidence on a justification defense.

403. On April 14, 2001, Robinson appeared in court with Duree for a hearing on Duree’s         in limine motion.

404. Duree’s motion was predicated upon a defendant’s right to present a defense to a jury.

405. Duree’s motion was based upon the affidavits of Marion Fry, M.D., medical marijuana expert Dale Shafer and Robinson.

406. Duree’s motion presented conclusive evidence on all six factual elements of the necessity justification defense.

407. Robinson’s position was that distribution of marijuana for a medical purpose was justified because California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5 declared that Californians have the right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose when the use has been recommended by a physician and because most people who have physician recommendation to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose need the distribution of marijuana to obtain marijuana.

408. In 1996, the People of the State of California legislated California Health & Safety Code Section 11362.5, also known as the Compassionate Use Act of 1996.

409. The Compassionate Use Act of 1996 states that its purpose is to ensure that Californians have the right to obtain and use marijuana for medical purposes when that medical use has been recommended by a physician.

410. The Compassionate Use Act of 1996 states that its purpose is to encourage the federal and state governments to implement a plan to provide for the safe and affordable distribution of marijuana to all patients with physician recommendation.                                            

411. Most people with physician recommendation to use marijuana for medical purposes are  not able to produce marijuana and do not have “primary care giver” who is able to produce marijuana.

412. No body is able to produce marijuana instantaneously.

413. Distribution of marijuana is the only way to obtain marijuana for most people with the lawful right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose at all times, and all of the people with the lawful right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose when first authorized by a physician to obtain marijuana.

414. By the beginning of the year 2000, neither the federal nor the state governments had provided for the distribution of marijuana for a medical purpose.

415. By the beginning of the year 2000, only private individuals provided for the distribution   of marijuana for a medical purpose. 

416. Necessity is a matter of fact.

417. A jury decides matters of fact.

418. Olney knew that necessity is a matter of fact.

419. Cunan knew that necessity is a matter of fact.

420. Olney knew that a jury decides matters of fact.

421. Cunan knew that a jury decides matters of fact.

422. Necessity may be used as a defense for any act.

423. Olney knew that necessity may be used as a defense for any act.

424. Cunan knew that necessity may be used as a defense for any act.

425. Olney and Cunan decided that the distribution of medical marijuana is not necessary.

426. Olney and Cunan decided that the Compassionate Use Act of 1996 did not apply to Robinson.

427. Olney and Cunan agreed to prevent Robinson from presenting justification evidence          to the jury.

428. Olney and Cunan agreed to prevent Robinson from informing the jury of the wording       of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996.

429. Olney and Cunan agreed that Robinson qualified for release on bail pending appeal.

430. Olney and Cunan offered to allow Robinson to be released on bail pending appeal if Robinson would waive Robinson’s right to a jury trial and allow Olney to rule upon the      facts and decide whether Robinson is guilty or not guilty.

431. Robinson refused to waive his right to a jury trial.

432. Duree informed Robinson that Cunan and Olney had completely tied Duree’s hands at trial.

433. Robinson’s family refused to continue to pay for an attorney whose cost was driven up by useless appearances demanded by the same Plumas County Court Officers who rendered that attorney useless by preventing the jury from hearing evidence of justification or even the wording of the California Compassionate Use Act of 1996.

434. Robinson arranged the sale of his primary residence to raise money to pay for an attorney.

435. Duree agreed to accept a lien against that property for payment.

436. United States government employees, in cooperation and conspiracy with Plumas County officers and employees, filed a lien against Robinson’s interest in that property.

437. United States Attorney Courtney Linn filed a forfeiture action against Robinson’s primary residence.

438. When the sale of this property closed in mid-March, 2001, Robinson would not receive any money.

439. United States Government employees did seize Robinson’s equity of $75,037.

440. Robinson informed Duree that Robinson had no more funding to pay Duree.

441. Robinson and Duree negotiated a settlement for the remainder of the approximately $18,000 in billings for the one in limine motion.

442. Robinson and Duree informed Olney and Cunan that Duree had withdrawn from Robinson’s case.

443. Robinson moved the court to appoint an attorney to assist Robinson.

444. Olney and Cunan required Robinson to complete a financial statement.

445. Upon advice from Duree, Robinson inquired whether Robinson had the right to privacy in his financial statement.

446. Olney failed to respond.

447. Cunan failed to respond.

448. The clerk finally responded by stating that, yes, Robinson had the right to make a private financial statement outside the presence of Cunan.

449. Cunan departed.

450. Robinson confidentially completed the financial form.

451. Olney ruled that Robinson qualified for appointed counsel.

452. Olney appointed Public Defender Doug Prouty to be the attorney of record in Robinson’s case.

453. Prouty was not present.

454. When Robinson and Prouty first met, Robinson inquired whether Prouty was ready, willing and able to raise the issues required for a fair trial, prepare for trial and ensure Robinson’s right to a speedy trial.

455. Prouty informed Robinson that Prouty’s heavy public defender caseload in addition to Prouty’s private caseload would make it impossible for Prouty to be fair to all of his current clients and proceed in a timely fashion with a legally complicated case like Robinson’s.

456. Robinson requested that Prouty inform the court that Prouty would not be able to be effective in Robinson’s case.

457. Prouty informed Olney and Cunan that Prouty did not have the time, knowledge or experience to be effective in a timely fashion in Robinson’s case

458. Prouty requested a continuance of the trial date beyond the statutory 60 days so that Prouty would have more time to prepare for Robinson’s trial and be fair to his many other clients.

459. Cunan, Olney and Prouty agreed that Prouty had to be Robinson’s attorney because Prouty was the only Plumas County Public Defender who did not have a conflict of interest.

460. Olney Cunan and Prouty knew that, according to California law, Olney should have gone outside Plumas County to hire an attorney who was ready willing and able to be effective and timely in Robinson’s case.

461. Cunan demanded that a trial date be set within 60 days on the ground that the state was claiming the right to a speedy trial.

462. Cunan, Olney and Prouty knew that the usual practice and policy was to allow a busy defense attorney extra time to make pre-trial motions and to prepare for trial.

463. The purpose of the Bill of Rights was to protect the defendant from government prosecution.

464. Cunan, Olney and Prouty knew that the purpose of the Bill of Rights speedy trial right is to protect the defendant in a government prosecution and may be waived by the defendant for the benefit of the defendant or defendant’s counsel.

465. Cunan, Olney and Prouty knew that a trial within 60 days would deprive Robinson of the effective assistance of counsel.

466. Cunan, Olney and Prouty agreed to set the trial within 60 days.

467. Plumas County has the policy or practice of appointing counsel for felony defendants under circumstances that make it impossible for counsel to be effective.

468. After a couple of meetings with Prouty, Robinson expressed doubt that Prouty was ready, willing and able to be effective in Robinson’s case.

469. Robinson requested that Prouty prepare and file several motions for Robinson, including, but not limited to, a motion to suppress all evidence obtained through the unlawful warrant and a Penal Code Section 866.5 motion to suppress Robinson’s unlawfully obtained preliminary hearing testimony, and a motion for change in venue.

470. Prouty failed and refused to file these or any other motions for Robinson.

471. Robinson moved the court to replace Prouty with an attorney who was ready, willing and able to be effective in Robinson’s case.

472. Olney cleared the courtroom.

473. Olney informed Robinson that it was Robinson’s opportunity to be heard.

474. Robinson called Doug Prouty to the witness stand.

475. Prouty was present.

476. Prouty had personal knowledge of facts relevant to the issue of whether Prouty was able to be effective.

477. Olney knew that Prouty had personal knowledge of facts relevant to the issue of whether Prouty was able to be effective.

478. Olney failed and refused to enforce Robinson’s subpoena of Prouty.

479. Prouty agreed with Olney’s refusal to enforce Robinson’s subpoena of Prouty.

480. Robinson testified to facts that showed Prouty did not have the time to be effective in Robinson’s case.

481. Prouty did not testify.

482. Olney failed and refused to perform his ministerial duty of replacing Prouty with an attorney who was ready, willing and able to be effective in Robinson’s case.

483. Robinson had no other alternative but to fire Prouty and proceed without the assistance of counsel because: 

a) Robinson did not have the money to pay for the assistance of counsel;

b) Plumas County has the practice and policy of appointing counsel under circumstances which make it impossible for the counsel to be effective; 

c) Prouty had already failed and refused to be effective in Robinson’s case; 

d) Olney had failed and refused to provide Robinson with a fair opportunity to be heard on Robinson’s motion to replace Prouty, or even enforce Robinson’s subpoena of Prouty so that Robinson could interrogate Prouty on the record related to Prouty’s ability to be effective;

e) With Prouty as the attorney of record, Robinson would be unable to move the court.

484. Robinson fired Prouty.

485. Before trial, Robinson filed a motion to exclude his preliminary hearing testimony from trial.

486. In this motion, Robinson cited California Penal Code Section 866.5.

487. Penal Code Section 866.5 declares that a defendant may not be examined at the examination unless he is represented by counsel, or unless he waives his right to counsel after being advised at such examination of his right to the aid of counsel.

488. In this motion, Robinson informed Olney and Cunan that Robinson was not represented by counsel at the preliminary hearing, that Robinson had requested appointed counsel at the preliminary hearing, that Robinson had not waived his right to the assistance of counsel at the preliminary hearing, and that Robinson was erroneously found not to qualify for appointed counsel at the preliminary hearing.

489. Olney and Cunan possessed the court records that verified the foregoing.

490. Robinson argued that Olney, on 11/22, and Pangman, on 12.7, had failed to permit Robinson to provide confidential financial data.

491. Robinson argued that Olney and Pangman had incorrectly ruled that Robinson must qualify for welfare to qualify for court appointed counsel.

492. Robinson argued that Robinson’s testimony at the preliminary hearing was elicited unlawfully, in violation of California Penal Code Section 866.5.

493. Robinson argued that his preliminary hearing testimony must be excluded from trial.

494. Cunan filed an opposition to Robinson’s Penal Code Section 866.5 motion.

495. In his opposition to Robinson’s 866.5 MOTION, Cunan knowingly, willingly and maliciously made the false claim that Robinson had waived Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel prior to and through the preliminary hearing.

496. Cunan knowingly, willingly and maliciously made the false claim that Robinson was advised of his right to counsel at the preliminary hearing but chose instead to represent himself.

497. The record shows that Robinson did not waive his right to the assistance of counsel at the preliminary hearing.

498. The record shows that Robinson made continuous repeated requests, including two written motions, for the assistance of counsel before, during and after the preliminary hearing.

499. Cunan knew that Robinson did not have counsel at the preliminary hearing.

500. Cunan knew that Robinson did not waive counsel at the preliminary hearing.

501. Cunan knew the wording of Penal Code Section 866.5.

502. Olney knew that Robinson did not have counsel at the preliminary hearing.

503. Olney knew that Robinson did not waive counsel at the preliminary hearing.

504. Olney knew the wording of Penal Code Section 866.5.

505. Prior to 1963, the California Court of Appeal, Third Appellate District, ruled that to take the examination at the preliminary hearing of a defendant who is without counsel and who has not waived the right to counsel and then use that testimony at trial to convict the defendant violates “all the rules of fair play”.

506. Olney and Cunan knowingly, willingly and maliciously agreed to use Robinson’s unlawfully obtained preliminary hearing testimony against Robinson at trial.

507. Olney and Cunan gave the jury the part of Robinson’s preliminary hearing testimony, which, according to the jury instructions of Olney and Cunan, constituted an admission of     the charges against Robinson.

508. Olney and Cunan withheld from the jury the part of Robinson’s preliminary hearing testimony that justified Robinson’s production of medical marijuana for distribution.

509. Olney and Cunan prevented Robinson from informing the jury of the wording of the Compassionate Use Act of 1996.

510. Olney and Cunan instructed the jury to reach a guilty verdict.

511. Olney and Cunan violated all the rules of fair play, and then some.

512. The jury returned a guilty verdict.

513. Olney and Cunan knowingly wrongfully convicted Robinson without jurisdiction over the person of Robinson.

514. Robinson requested a release on bail pending appeal.

515. Olney and Cunan refused to release Robinson on bail pending appeal because Robinson refused to waive Robinson’s right to a jury trial.

516. Olney and Cunan knowingly wrongfully sentenced Robinson to three years in state prison.

517. Olney and Cunan knowingly cooperated to unlawfully imprison Robinson.

518. Olney and Cunan knowingly cooperated to unlawfully imprison Robinson for 582 days.

519. Olney and Cunan knowingly, willingly and maliciously convicted and imprisoned Robinson without jurisdiction over the person of Robinson.

520. On March 18, 2003,the Court of Appeal of the State of California, Third Appellate District, reversed Robinson’s conviction. (case number C039311)

521. A copy of this appellate ruling was served upon Plumas County and the California Attorney General.

522. Cunan read the ruling.

523. Cunan spoke to Feather River Bulletin Reporter Tiffany Wood about this appellate court reversal of Robinson’s conviction.

524. On April 9, 2003, The Feather River Bulletin pubished an article authored by Tiffany Wood entitled “MARIJUANA GROWER MAY WIN APPEAL”.

525. In this article, Wood quotes Cunan:  “I want to do whatever it takes to make sure everyone involved in this case understands that Mr. Robinson is guilty of the crimes he was convicted of; that may or may not include refiling.”

526. On May 9, 2003, Attorney James Bisnow sent a letter to Cunan on behalf of Robinson.

527. Bisnow requested that Cunan contact Bisnow to inform Robinson of how Cunan intended to proceed.

528. This letter requests that Cunan respond.

529. Cunan failed to respond to Bisnow’s letter.

530. The California Attorney General did not appeal the appellate court ruling to the Supreme Court of the State of California.

531. On May 20, 2003, the appellate court remitted Robinson’s case back to the Plumas County court.

532. A copy of the REMITTITUR was sent to Plumas County District Attorney Cunan.

533. A copy of the REMITTITUR was sent to the Plumas County Court.

534. A copy of the REMITTITUR was sent to the California Attorney General.

535. On May 22, 2003, a copy of the REMITTITUR was filed in the Plumas County Court.

536. Attorney John Duree spoke with Cunan on behalf of Robinson.

537. Duree inquired whether Cunan would proceed against Robinson.

538. Cunan did not provide a definite response.

539. California Penal Code section 1382 mandates that the judge must dismiss an action if the defendant is not brought to trial within 60 days of the filing of the REMITTITUR in the trial court, and the prosecution cannot show good cause for the delay.

540. July 21, 2003 was the 60th day following the filing of the REMITTITUR in the Plumas County court.

541. Prior to July 21, 2003, Cunan had not taken any action in Robinson’s case.

542. Prior to July 21, 2003, Olney had taken no action in Robinson’s case.

543. On July 21 2003, Olney issued a minute order in Robinson’s case.

544. Olney ‘s minute order states that Robinson’s case would be on calendar for “hearing” on               August 18, 2003 at 1:30 P.M.

545. Olney failed to state the name of the party that moved the court for this “hearing”.

546. Olney failed to state any cause of this “hearing”.

547. Olney failed to state any purpose for this “hearing”.

548. The Plumas County court knew or should have known that Robinson had paroled to Maryland when paroled from prison.

549. The Plumas County court sent notice of Olney’s 8/18/03 “hearing” to the California post office box that Robinson had prior to being wrongfully convicted and imprisoned.

550. Robinson contacted the Plumas county Court by telephone.

551. Robinson inquired whether any action had been taken in Robinson’s case.

552. The clerk informed Robinson of Olney’s order for an August 18, 2003 “hearing”.

553. Robinson inquired whether notice of Olney’s “hearing” had been sent to Robinson.

554. The clerk informed Robinson that notice of Olney’s “hearing” had been sent to  Robinson’s defunct Greenville, California post office box.

555. Robinson informed the clerk of Robinson’s current Maryland address.

556. The clerk sent a copy of Olney’s order to Robinson in Maryland.

557. Robinson notified his Maryland parole officer, settled the lease on his home, put his property in storage, took an unlimited leave of absence from his employment, loaded his     dog in his vehicle and drove to Plumas County, California to face charges.

558. On August 18, 2003, at 1:30 P.M., Robinson appeared in the Plumas County Court.

559. Olney was the judge.

560. Cunan was the prosecutor.

561. Olney and Cunan failed and refused to provide Robinson with an opportunity to be heard.

562. Olney read the charges to Robinson.

563. Olney entered a plea of “not guilty” for Robinson.

564. Olney and Cunan set trial date of September 27, 2003.

565. Olney and Cunan set a motions date of September 12, 2003.

566. Without request from Robinson and without financial consideration, Olney and Cunan appointed Prouty to represent Robinson.

567. Prouty informed Olney and Cunan that Olney was too busy to take Robinson’s case.

568. Olney appointed Lassen County Attorney Traci Witry to represent Robinson.

569. Olney recessed Robinson’s case to telephone Witry.

570. When Olney resumed Robinson’s case, Olney provided Robinson with Witry’s telephone number.

571. Olney dismissed Robinson’s case for the day.

572. On August 28, 2003, Witry filed a motion to dismiss on the ground of a violation of Robinson’s right to a speedy trial.

573. On August 29, 2003, Cunan filed a response to Witry’s motion to dismiss.

574. Cunan admitted that Robinson’s right to a speedy trial had been violated.

575. Cunan admitted that there was no good cause for the violation of Robinson’s right to a speedy trial.

576. Cunan stipulated that the charges must be dismissed.

577. Cunan blamed “the court” for failure to properly notice Robinson.

578. In the conclusion of Cunan’s response to Witry’s motion to dismiss, Cunan states that Robinson “…..is entitled to his Pyrrhic victory”.

579. Webster’s Unabridged Dictionary defines “Pyrrhic victory” as “a victory achieved at too great a cost”.

580. For the first time in this case, Robinson agreed with Cunan:  Robinson was entitled to the victory and the victory was achieved at too great a cost.

581. On September 3, 2003, Olney and Cunan dismissed all charges against Robinson.

582. On September 3, 2003, time began to toll for the filing of a civil action for the unlawful conviction and imprisonment and related charges when the Plumas County Court dismissed all charges against Robinson.

583. Throughout the process against Robinson, Robinson made numerous requests that his personal medical marijuana be returned to him.

584. Kaufman, Olney and Cunan knew that Robinson had the lawful right to obtain and use marijuana for a medical purpose.

585. Kaufman, Olney and Cunan failed and refused to return any marijuana to Robinson.

586. Robinson complained Gardner that Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

587. Gardner did not investigate Robinson’s complaint against Hagwood.

588. Robinson complained to Reichle and Cunan that Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

589. Reichle and Cunan failed to investigate Robinson’s complaint against Hagwood.

590. Robinson moved the Plumas County Court for an evidentiary hearing to determine  whether Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

591. Cunan, Olney, Kaufman and Pangman prevented Robinson from holding an evidentiary hearing to determine whether Hagwood lied to obtain the warrant.

592. The Office of the California Attorney General knew that the Plumas County Court Officers violated Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

593. California and Plumas County had done nothing to prevent the Defendant Plumas County Court Officers from violating Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

594. California and Plumas County did nothing to punish the Defendant Plumas County Court Officers for violating Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

595. California and Plumas County have done nothing to prevent the Defendant Plumas County Court Officers or others in the same positions from violating other people’s right to the assistance of counsel in the future.

596. California and Plumas County condoned the violation by the Plumas County Court Officers of Robinson’s right to the assistance of counsel.

597. California and Plumas County have the practice and defacto policy of condoning Constitutional rights violations by court officers.

598. California and Plumas County have the practice and defacto policy of condoning wrongful convictions and imprisonments by court officers.

599. California and Plumas County did not prosecute, punish or, reprimand, or even investigate, the Plumas County Court Officers who violated Robinson’s statutory and Constitutional rights to wrongfully convict and imprison Robinson.

600. On December 29, 2003, Robinson filed his claim with the California Board of Control.

601. December 29, 2003 is less than four months after the September 3, 2003 Plumas County Court dismissal of all charges against Robinson.

602. On January 14, 2004, the California State Board of Control rejected Robinson’s 12/29/03 claim.

603. On February 3, 2004, Robinson again served his December 29, 2003 claim and an additional three claims on the California Board of Control, Plumas County , California Attorney General, California Judicial Council, California Commission on Judicial Performance, and the Governor.

604. Plumas County rejected Robinson’s claims.

605. On February 18, 2004, the California Board of Control rejected all of Robinson’s claims.

606. Both California and Plumas County rejected Robinson’s claim without due consideration and without sufficient investigation.

607. All others served failed to respond to or even acknowledge receipt of Robinson’s claims

608. July 4, 2004 was less than six months after the January 14, 2004 rejection of Robinson’s initial claim by the California Board of Control.

609. July 4, 2004, was ten months after the September 3, 2003 Plumas County dismissal of criminal charges against Robinson.

610. July 4, 2004 was a timely filing of the original complaint in this Court.

611. This second amended complaint was served and filed within thirty days of the date of service of the June 29, 2005 order of Magistrate Judge Drodz.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

As a result of the conduct described in the foregoing CAUSES OF ACTION and the 

STATEMENT OF FACTS IN SUPPORT OF SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT 

on pages 7-29, Robinson suffered substantial damages, including, but not limited to: 

wrongful conviction and incarceration, physical pain and suffering, humiliation, 

extreme emotional and psychological distress, loss of real property, loss of chattel 

property, loss of opportunity, and monetary loss.

WHEREFORE, Robinson claims:

A. Compensatory Damages:                                                     $  10,500,000

B. Punitive, Exemplary Damages:                                           $100,000,000

C. Attorney Fees

D. Costs

E. Such other relief as this Court may deem appropriate under the Constitution and laws of the United States and California.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff Joseph Robinson demands a jury trial in this case.
VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

I declare under penalty of perjury that the forgoing second amended complaint is true and correct.

DATE:  July 15, 2005                                                          Joseph Robinson
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